THE WHITE HOUSE

WASHINGTON

December 16, 2021

Kristin L. Amerling

Deputy Staff Director and Chief Counsel

Select Committee to Investigate the January 6th Attack on the U.S. Capitol
Longworth House Office Building

Washington, DC 20515

Dear Ms. Amerling:

I write to memorialize our discussions regarding 511 pages of presidential records from
the files of the National Security Council (the “NSC”) that the National Archives and Records
Administration deemed responsive to the Select Committee’s August 25, 2021 request and sent
to the White House for review on October 22, 2021. As you are aware, the review period for
these presidential records was extended for both the incumbent and former Presidents in order to
complete the review process.

As specified below, the Select Committee has agreed to withdraw or defer its request for
the documents bearing the Bates numbers listed in Exhibit A of this letter. This agreement
follows the Select Committee’s previous agreement to defer its request for 50 pages of
presidential records related to the exercise of exclusive presidential authorities. Both agreements
reflect the ongoing effort by the Executive and Legislative Branches to ensure that the Select
Committee’s legitimate needs are accommodated while preserving important Executive Branch
prerogatives, such as the need for confidentiality in presidential decision-making. Further, both
agreements are without prejudice to the Select Committee’s ability to revisit its request for the
deferred records in the future and to the White House’s ability to respond appropriately should
such circumstances arise, including by asserting privilege if warranted.

First, the Select Committee has agreed to withdraw its request for certain presidential
records within the 511 pages, listed in Category 1 of Exhibit A, which are responsive to the
Select Committee’s request only because of the date on which they were created. These records
appear to have no content that might be material to the Select Committee’s investigation.

Second, the Select Committee has agreed to defer its request for other presidential
records within the 511 pages, listed in Category 2 of Exhibit A, which largely originated outside
the White House from Executive Branch agencies with responsibility over law enforcement and
intelligence gathering. These records reflect the NSC’s role as the “principal means for
coordinating executive departments and agencies in the development and implementation of
national security policy.”! In recognition of the fact that the agencies are better positioned to
accommodate the Select Committee’s request for those materials, some of which are highly
classified or law-enforcement sensitive, the Select Committee has agreed to defer its request for

! Memorandum on Renewing the National Security Council System (Feb. 4, 2021).



these records pending completion of document productions by the relevant agencies. Likewise,
the Select Committee has agreed to defer its request for internal White House documents that
collect and summarize agency intelligence reports and related items.

The Select Committee has also agreed to defer its request for documents bearing on the
NSC’s deliberative process, including documents collected and circulated in preparation for
meetings of the Principals Committee. Because the NSC is the “principal forum for consideration
of national security policy issues requiring Presidential determination,”” the Executive Branch
has longstanding and important interests in maintaining the confidentiality of this decision-
making process.

President Biden recognizes that Congress has a compelling need, in service of its
legislative functions, to understand the circumstances that led to the insurrection that took place
on January 6, and the extraordinary events surrounding it, in order to ensure nothing similar ever
happens again. The documents for which the Select Committee has agreed to withdraw or defer
its request do not appear to bear on the White House’s preparations for or response to the events
of January 6, or on efforts to overturn the election or otherwise obstruct the peaceful transfer of
power. Accordingly, the Select Committee’s agreement to withdraw or defer these documents, as
well as the documents subject to the prior deferral, should not compromise its ability to complete
its critical investigation expeditiously.

Sincerely,

Jonathan C. Su
Deputy Counsel to the President
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